
 
 

 

Via Electronic Mail 

Dated as of the date signed below  

Mr. Matthew Calacone 
Global Operations, Environment, Health & Safety 
General Electric Company 
1 Plastics Avenue 
Pittsfield, MA 01201  

Re: Conditional Approval of General Electric’s December 20, 2024 submittal titled Upland Disposal 
Facility Revised Operation, Monitoring, and Maintenance Plan, GE- Pittsfield/Housatonic River 
Site 

Dear Mr. Calacone: 

This letter contains the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) conditional approval of GE’s Upland 
Disposal Facility Revised Operation, Monitoring, and Maintenance Plan (the “UDF Revised OMM Plan”).  
This UDF Revised OMM Plan is subject to the terms and conditions specified in the Consent Decree 
(CD) that was entered in U.S. District Court on October 27, 2000 and the UDF Revised OMM Plan dated 
December 16, 2020.  EPA held a public input period regarding the UDF Revised OMM Plan from 
December 23, 2024 to February 10, 2025.   

Pursuant to Section XV of the CD, EPA, after reasonable opportunity for review and comment by the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the State of Connecticut, approves the Revised Final Design Plan 
subject to the following conditions.   

1. GE shall periodically submit for EPA approval an updated UDF Revised OMM Plan when 
conditions warrant as required by EPA, but GE shall revise such Plan no later than prior to 
initiation of UDF consolidation operations.  Note that there are several conditions in this 
Conditional Approval Letter (CAL) that will have to be addressed in the next update.   Section 
3.6:   In response to Condition #16 in EPA’s OMM Plan CAL dated September 12, 2024, GE did 
not change the EPA-required reporting period from annual to semi-annual as specified.  GE shall 
change this reporting period to semi-annual in the UDF Revised OMM Plan to be issued prior to 
initiation of UDF consolidation operations (as described above) and shall then submit the reports 
semi-annually.  GE also has specified a timeline of 72 hours for posting listed data to the public 
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website.  This public posting requirement shall be modified if a different period is specified in 
the approved Quality of Life (QoL) Plan.  

2. Section 4.5.1: GE shall address the length of time that daily cover material may remain in place 
in consultation with the selected contractor and shall include a proposal on this issue in the 
Supplemental Information Package for the UDF for EPA’s review and approval.   

3. Section 4.5.3 and Condition #23 of OMM Plan CAL dated September 12, 2024: GE did not include 
the required statement that “…any observed erosion or degradation of final cover will be 
repaired as soon as practicable upon observation.”  This procedure shall be specified in the next 
UDF Revised OMM Plan update.  

 
EPA reserves all of its rights under the Decree, including but not limited to, the right to perform and/or 
require additional sampling, or response actions, if necessary, to meet the requirements of the 
Consent Decree. If there is any conflict between the Performance Standards as stated in the submittal 
and the Performance Standards as stated in the Consent Decree or the Revised Final Permit, the 
Consent Decree and/or the Revised Final Permit shall control. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Richard Fisher 
Project Manager 
 
cc: 

Dean Tagliaferro, EPA 
John Kilborn, EPA 
Josh Fontaine, EPA 
Christopher Smith, EPA 
Christopher Ferry, ASRC (EPA electronic repository) 
Lance Hauer, GE 
Kevin Mooney, GE 
Andrew Inglis, GE 
Rachel Leary, GE 
James Bieke, Counsel for GE 
Thomas Czelusniak, HDR Inc. 
Scott Campbell, Taconic Ridge Environmental  
Izabela Zapisek, Taconic Ridge Environmental  
Tamara Cardona-Marek, Massachusetts DEP 
Ben Guidi, Massachusetts DEP 
Jason Perry, Massachusetts DEP 

RICHARD 
FISHER

Digitally signed by 
RICHARD FISHER 
Date: 2025.03.10 12:21:35 
-04'00'A 
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Michael Gorski, Massachusetts DEP 
Christine LeBel, Massachusetts DEP 
Benjamin Ericson, Massachusetts DEP 
Michelle Craddock, Lead Administrative Trustee, Massachusetts DEP 
Betsy Harper, Massachusetts Attorney General’s Office 
Traci Iott, Connecticut DEEP 
Susan Peterson, Connecticut DEEP  
Carol Papp, Connecticut DEEP   
Graham Stevens, Connecticut DEEP 
Lori DiBella, Connecticut Attorney General’s Office 
Whitney Behr, Trustee, U.S. Fish. and Wildlife  
James Turek, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration  
Danielle Perry, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Mayor Peter Marchetti, City of 
Pittsfield 
Jim McGrath, City of Pittsfield 
Andy Cambi, Pittsfield Health Director 
Jim Wilusz, Tritown Board of Health 
Michael Coakley, Pittsfield Economic Development Authority  
Nate Joyner, City of Pittsfield 
Jeffrey Mickelson, Massachusetts DEP 
MAHousatonicSF@mass.gov, MassDFG/DFW 
Melissa Provencher, Berkshire Regional Planning Commission  
Town Manager, Lenox  
Town Administrator, Lee  
Town Manager, Great Barrington  
Town Administrator, Stockbridge   
Town Administrator, Sheffield  
Bettina Washington, Wampanoag Tribe of Gay Head (Aquinnah) 
Mark Andrews, Deputy THPO, Narragansett Tribe 
Bonnie Hartley, SMC 
Chuck Kilson, Schaghticoke Tribal Nation 
Chairman Russell, Schaghticoke Indian Tribe 
Jeffrey Bendremer, THPO, Stockbridge-Munsee Community 
Brona Simon, Massachusetts Historical Commission  
Edward L. Bell, Massachusetts Historical Commission  
Public Information Repository at David M. Hunt Library in Falls Village, CT  
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